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ROBERT S. NELSON (SBN# 220984)
NELSON LAW GROUP

900 Cherry Avenue, Suite 300

San Bruno, CA 94066

(650) 794-2760 (phone)

(650) 794-2761 (fax)
rnelson@nelsonlawgroup.net

Attorneys for Plaintiff
GLENN HILL and all others similarly situated

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

GLENN HILL, Case No. C 09 01907 MEJ

and all others similarly situated,
FIRST AMENDED CLASS AND

COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR
V. LABOR STANDARDS ACT AND
] STATE WAGE-AND-HOUR LAWS;
R + L CARRIERS, INC., a corporatlon; CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES AND
R+L CARRIERS SHARED SERVICES, INJUNCTIVE RELIEE

LLC, a corporation,

JURY TRIAL REQUESTED
Defendants. Q

Plaintiff GLENN HILL (“Plaintiff”), by and through his attorneys of record, on behalf of
himself and all other persons similarly situated, and the general public, hereby complains against
Defendants R+L CARRIERS, INC. and R+L CARRIERS SHARED SERVICES, LLC

(collectively referred to herein as “Defendants”), as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. This action is for unpaid overtime in violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act
(“FLSA”) of 1947, California Labor Code Section 1194, and applicable Wage Orders of the
California Industrial Welfare Commission (“IWC”); failure to provide employees with sufficient

meal and rest breaks in violation of California Labor Code Section 226.7, and applicable Wage
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Orders of the IWC; failure to keep and provide required payroll records in violation of California
Labor Code Sections 226 and 1174; and unfair competition in violation of California Business
and Professions Code Section 17200.

2. Plaintiff alleges that Defendants unlawfully characterized both him and all others
similarly situated as “exempt” from overtime requirements. Plaintiff specifically alleges that
Defendants unlawfully characterized all persons who work, or have worked during the relevant
time period, as Dispatchers (including, but not limited to, “City Dispatchers” or anyone else who
performs dispatcher job duties for Defendants) as exempt from both federal and state law
requiring premium and/or double-time pay for all overtime hours worked. Plaintiff also alleges
that Defendants failed to provide meal and rest breaks, and to keep and provide adequate work
and/or payroll records for all Dispatchers, as required by law.

3. Plaintiff seeks to certify a sub-class of all similarly-situated persons who work, or
have worked, as Dispatchers for Defendants anywhere outside of California (“Nationwide
Collective Plaintiffs”). Plaintiff also seeks to certify a sub-class of all similarly-situated persons
who work, or have worked, as Dispatchers for Defendants anywhere in California (“California
Class”).

4. Defendants’ practices are in direct violation of the FLSA and/or the applicable
state wage-and-hour laws described below. Plaintiff, on behalf of both himself, the Nationwide
Collective Plaintiffs, and the California Class, seeks injunctive and declaratory relief; unpaid
overtime premiums for all overtime work required, suffered or permitted by Defendants;
liquidated and/or other damages and penalties, as permitted by applicable federal and/or state law;
and attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses of this action.

5. Defendants’ practices and policies are, and at all relevant times have been, to
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willfully fail and refuse to pay overtime compensation for all hours worked due and owing to
Plaintiff and all putative collective and/or class members, in violation of both federal and
California state law. Defendants have instituted and carried out unlawful policies and practices of
treating Plaintiff and putative collective and/or class members as exempt from legal obligations
under federal and California state law, and of refusing to pay overtime compensation for all hours
worked, notwithstanding that Plaintiff and putative collective and/or class members are not, and
have never been, exempt and are and have always been entitled to overtime pay for all overtime
hours worked. Defendants have treated Plaintiff and the putative collective and/or class members
as exempt from the overtime requirements of both the FLSA and applicable state law and has
refused to properly pay them, notwithstanding that they are not, nor have they ever been, exempt
from overtime requirements.

6. Overtime work by both Plaintiff and the putative collective and/or class members
iS @ common occurrence.

PARTIES

7. Plaintiff is a natural person who is a resident of California. Plaintiff hereby
consents to sue for violations of the FLSA, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. Section 216(b).

8. Defendant R+L Carriers, Inc. is a trucking company headquartered in Wilmington,
Ohio, with truck terminal operations in the State of California, including in this judicial district
(in San Lorenzo).

9. Plaintiff is informed and believes that Defendant R+L Carriers Shared Services,
LLC, is an employee leasing company, also based in Ohio, that provides staffing and/or payroll

support services to Defendant R+L Carriers.
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10.  Plaintiff and all others similarly situated are joint employees of both Defendant
R+L Carriers, Inc. and R+L Carriers Shared Services, LLC.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

11.  This Court has federal question jurisdiction over this case pursuant to 29 U.S.C.
Section 216(b) and 28 U.S.C. Section 1331 because this action arises under the laws of the United
States, including the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. Section 207, et seq. This Court also has original
jurisdiction over this action under the Class Action Fairness Act, 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d), because
this is a class action in which: (1) there are 100 or more members in the named Plaintiff’s
proposed class; (2) at least some members of the proposed class have a different citizenship from
Defendant; and (3) the claims of the proposed class members exceed $5,000,000 in the aggregate.
In addition, because the claims stated herein arise from the same or substantially similar facts and
circumstances and derive from a common nucleus of operative facts, this Court has supplemental
and/or pendent jurisdiction to hear all claims presented in this action, including claims arising
under state law, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Section 1367.

12.  The Northern District of California has personal jurisdiction over this matter
because Defendants are doing business here, in this district, and because many of the acts
complained of herein occurred in this District and gave rise to the claims alleged.

13.  Venue is proper in the Northern District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Section 1391(b) and
(c) because Defendants may be found in this District and because a substantial part of the events
giving rise to the claims presented in this Complaint occurred in this District.

14.  Pursuant to N.D. Cal. Local Rule 3-2(c) and (d), intra-district assignment to the
San Francisco/Oakland Division is proper because a substantial part of the events giving rise to
claims presented in this Complaint occurred in the City of San Lorenzo, in the County of
Alameda. 4
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FACTS AND ALLEGATIONS RELATED TO PLAINTIFF

15.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein all allegations previously
made in Paragraphs 1 through 14, above.

16. Defendants are, and at times relevant to this Complaint were, an “employer” under
applicable federal and state law, and relevant Wage Orders of the IWC.

17.  Plaintiff was at all times relevant to this Complaint an “employee” of Defendants,
as that term is defined under both federal and state law.

18.  Plaintiff was an employee of Defendants from approximately September 2008
through December 2009.

19. During this entire time, Plaintiff’s job title was “City Dispatcher.” Plaintiff
worked out of Defendants’ San Lorenzo, California facility.

20.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, Plaintiff was compensated for his work
with Defendants solely through a set annual salary. When Plaintiff first began working for
Defendants, his salary was $49,030.00 per year, or about $942.88 per pay period. In or around
September 2008, Plaintiff received a raise to $53,000.00 per year, or about $1,019.23 per pay
period.

21.  Asa City Dispatcher, Plaintiff was required to work continuously from 7:00 a.m.
until approximately 5:00 or 6:00 p.m. Plaintiff was also periodically required to work on
Saturdays and/or Sundays (in addition to the weekday work already described).

22.  Plaintiff performed work duties and tasks as a City Dispatcher of such a nature,
quality and duration that Plaintiff was effectively a non-exempt employee entitled to receive
overtime compensation, meal and rest breaks, and specified payroll records (including, but not
limited to, records of hours worked, deductions from earned wages, applicable wage rates, etc.).
7 5
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23.  Plaintiff’s compensation never fluctuated according to the amount of time that he
worked for Defendants. Plaintiff was never paid overtime for any work he performed for
Defendants in excess of forty (40) hours in a single week, and/or in excess of eight (8) hours in a
single work day.

24, Plaintiff was never provided with half-hour, duty free meal breaks for each five (5)
hour blocks of time that he worked for Defendants, nor was he ever provided with 10-minute rest
breaks for each four (4) hour block of time (or major portions thereof) that he worked. When
Plaintiff did leave his desk to go to the restroom, he was required to carry the company cell phone
with him in order to continue his dispatching duties.

25.  Plaintiff never received records showing the total hours he worked each pay
period, or records showing the applicable pay rate(s) in effect during each period.

COLLECTIVE AND CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

26.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein all allegations previously
made in Paragraphs 1 through 25, above.

27.  Plaintiff brings the claims articulated herein on behalf of both himself and all
persons similarly situated with regard to relevant factors such as location and timing of work; job
duties and responsibilities; specified employment practices; and job title(s). Plaintiff specifically
brings claims on behalf of two (2) different subclasses, as articulated more fully below:

e All persons who worked for any period of time in the United States, but outside of
California, who were classified as Dispatchers (including “City Dispatchers” and
any other position(s) who are either called, or work(ed) as, dispatchers) in the
three years prior to the filing of this Complaint (Nationwide Collective Plaintiffs).

e All persons who worked for any period of time in California who were classified
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as Dispatchers (including “City Dispatchers” and any other position(s) who are
either called, or work(ed) as, dispatchers) in the four years prior to the filing of
this Complaint, up through the final disposition of this action (California Class).

28.  Plaintiff brings claims on behalf of the Nationwide Collective Plaintiffs as an “opt-
in” collective action pursuant to Section 16(b) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. Section 216. Plaintiff and
the Nationwide Collective Plaintiffs are similarly situated, have substantially similar job
requirements and pay provisions, and are subject to Defendants’ common practice, policy and/or
plan of refusing to pay overtime in violation of the FLSA and unlawfully characterizing
Nationwide Collective Plaintiffs as exempt employees. The claims of Plaintiff under the FLSA
are therefore similar to the claims of the prospective Nationwide Collective Plaintiffs.

29.  Plaintiff brings claims on behalf of the California Class as a class action pursuant
to Fed. R. Civ. Proc. Section 23(a), (b)(2), and (b)(3). The California Class is so numerous that
joinder of all members is impracticable. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all
members of the California Class that predominate over any questions affecting individual
members, including, but not limited to, the following:

e Whether Defendants violated California Labor Code Section 510 by failing to pay
overtime compensation to California Class members who worked in excess of
forty (40) hours per week and/or eight (8) hours per day;

e Whether Defendants violated California Labor Code Section 1174 by failing to
keep accurate records of employees’ work hours;

e Whether Defendants violated California Labor Code Sections 201 through 203 by
failing to pay overtime wages due and owing to California Class members at the
time that their respective employment terminated,

I 7
CLASS AND COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT
CASE NO. C 09 01907 MEJ




© 00 ~N o o b~ O w N

N T N R N N T N T N N e T e e =
©® N o B W N B O © 0O N oo o~ W N -k O

Whether Plaintiff and the California Class members are entitled to “waiting time”
penalties pursuant to California Labor Code Section 203;

Whether Defendants violated California Labor Code Section 226 by failing to
provide semi-monthly itemized statements to California Class members of total
hours worked by each and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the relevant
pay period(s);

Whether Defendants violated the meal and rest break provisions of Labor Code
Sections 226.7 and 512 by failing to afford Plaintiff and the California Class
members proper meal and rest periods;

Whether Defendants violated California Business & Professions Code Sections
17200 and 17208 by failing to pay overtime compensation to Plaintiff and
California Class members who worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week,
and/or eight (8) hours a day; by failing to keep accurate records of employees’
hours worked; by failing to pay all wages due to employees upon discharge; and
by failing to provide meal and rest breaks; and

What is the proper measure of damages sustained by members of the California
Class?

Plaintiff’s claims are typical of those of the California Class. Plaintiff, like other

members of the California Class, was subjected to Defendants’ policy and practice of refusing to
pay overtime in violation of California law. Plaintiff’s job duties and compensation were also

typical of other members of the California Class.

Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of all the

various subclass members because he has no disabling conflict(s) of interest that would be
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antagonistic to those of the other class members. Plaintiff has retained counsel who are
competent and experienced in class action wage-and-hour litigation.

32.  Collective and/or class treatment is superior to alternative methods to adjudicate
this dispute because Plaintiff and other class members suffered similar treatment and harm as a
result of systematic policies and practices, and because, absent a class and/or collective action,
Defendants’ unlawful conduct will likely continue unremedied and unabated given that the
damages suffered by individual class members are small compared to the expense and burden of
individual litigation. Class certification is also superior because it will obviate the need for
unduly duplicative litigation which might result in inconsistent judgments about Defendants’
practices.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

(Failure to Pay Overtime in Violation of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. Section 201, et seq.)
(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Nationwide Collective Plaintiffs)

33.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein all allegations previously
made in Paragraphs 1 through 32, above.

34.  During all time periods relevant to this Complaint, Defendants required Plaintiff
and other class members to work in excess of forty (40) hours per week.

35.  Plaintiff and other class members did in fact routinely work in excess of forty (40)
hours per week.

36. During all time periods relevant to this Complaint, the FLSA required that all work
performed by non-exempt employees in excess of forty (40) hours in any single workweek be
compensated at a rate of one-and-one-half times the employees’ regular rate of pay.

37. Defendants failed to compensate Plaintiff and other class members for overtime
hours they worked. 9
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38.  Defendants’ conduct, as alleged herein, was willful and in bad faith within the
meaning of 29 U.S.C. Section 255(a).

39.  Plaintiff and other class members are therefore entitled to the relief requested
below.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(Failure to Pay Overtime in Violation of Cal. Lab. Code Sections 510, 1194)
(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the California Class)

40.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein all allegations previously
made in Paragraphs 1 through 39, above.

41.  During all time periods relevant to this Complaint, Defendants required Plaintiff
and other class members to work in excess of eight (8) hours in a single day, and/or in excess of
forty (40) hours in a single week.

42.  Plaintiff and other class members did in fact routinely work in excess of eight (8)
hours in a single day, and in excess of forty (40) hours in a single week.

43.  During all time periods relevant to this Complaint, both the California Labor Code
and relevant Wage Orders of the California Industrial Welfare Commission required that all work
performed by employees in excess of eight (8), but not exceeding twelve (12), hours in a single
day, on the seventh (7") consecutive day of work in a single workweek, and/or in excess of forty
(40) hours in any single workweek be compensated at a rate of one-and-one-half times the
employees’ regular rate of pay. Work in excess of twelve (12) hours in any single workday must
be compensated at a rate of twice the employees’ regular rate of pay.

44.  Defendants failed to compensate Plaintiff and other class members for overtime
hours they worked.

1 10
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45, Plaintiff and other class members are therefore entitled to the relief requested
below.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(Failure to Provide Meal & Rest Breaks in Violation of Cal. Lab. Code Sections 226.7, 512)
(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the California Class)

46.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein all allegations previously
made in Paragraphs 1 through 45, above.

47.  During all time periods relevant to this Complaint, Defendants required Plaintiff
and other class members to work more than five (5) consecutive hours without being provided
with a duty-free, half-hour meal break.

48.  During all time periods relevant to this Complaint, Defendants required Plaintiff
and other class members to work for four (4) consecutive hours, or major fractions thereof,
without being provided with ten-minute rest breaks.

49, Plaintiff and other class members did in fact routinely work more than five (5)
consecutive hours without being provided with a duty-free, half-hour meal break, and for four (4)
consecutive hours, or major fractions thereof, without being provided with ten (10) minute rest
breaks.

50.  During all time periods relevant to this Complaint, both the California Labor Code
and relevant Wage Orders of the Industrial Welfare Commission required that Plaintiff and other
class members be provided with duty-free, half-hour meal breaks after five (5) consecutive hours
of work, and with ten (10) minute rest breaks for every four (4) consecutive hours, or major
fractions thereof, that they work.

51.  Plaintiff and other class members are therefore entitled to the relief requested

below. 11
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FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Recordkeeping in Violation of Cal. Lab. Code Sections 226, 1174, et al.)

52.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein all allegations previously
made in Paragraphs 1 through 51, above.

53. Defendants knowingly and intentionally failed to provide timely, accurate itemized
wage statements to Plaintiff and the California Class members in accordance with California
Labor Code Section 226. Such failure caused injury to Plaintiff and the California Class.

54, Defendants also knowingly and intentionally failed to maintain records of hours
worked by Plaintiff and the California Class members in accordance with California Labor Code
Section 1174(d). Such failure caused injury to Plaintiff and the California Class.

55.  Plaintiff and members of the California Class is/are entitled to, and do hereby seek,
injunctive relief requiring Defendants to comply with Labor Code Sections 226(a) and 1174(d);
and the greater of all actual damages or fifty dollars ($50.00) for the initial pay period in which a
violation occurs and one-hundred dollars ($100.00) per employee for each violation in each
subsequent pay period, pursuant to Labor Code Sections 226(e).

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Willful Failure to Pay in Violation of Labor Code Section 203)
(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Salary and California Class)

56.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein all allegations previously
made in Paragraphs 1 through 55, above.

57.  During all time periods relevant to this Complaint, Plaintiff and other members of
the California Class quit or were discharged from their employment from Defendants without
being paid all wages they had earned up to the date of their respective termination.

1" 12
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58. Defendants’ failure to pay earned wages was willful, in that Defendants knew that
Plaintiff and other California Class members had performed work for which they had not been
paid.

59.  Plaintiff and other members of the California Class are therefore entitled to the
relief requested below.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Unfair Business Practices in Violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code Section 17200)
(On Behalf of The Named Plaintiff and The California Class)

60.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein all allegations previously
made in Paragraphs 1 through 59, above.

61.  California Business & Professions Code Section 17200, et seq., prohibits acts of
unfair competition, which includes, but is not limited to, any unlawful business practice or act.

62.  The policies, acts and practices described herein were and are an unlawful business
act or practice because Defendants’ failure to pay overtime, failure to provide meal and rest
breaks, and failure to keep adequate timekeeping records violates the California Labor Code,
including, but not limited to, Sections 226, 226.7, 512, 1174 and 1194, applicable Wage Orders of
the IWC, and other provisions of California common and/or statutory law.

63.  The unfair competition prohibited by Section 17200 also prohibits unfair business
practices or acts.

64.  The policies, acts or practices described herein were, and are, an unfair business
act or practice because any justifications for Defendants’ unlawful and unfair conduct were, and
are, vastly outweighed by the harm such conduct caused to Plaintiff and other class members, as
well as members of the general public.

1" 13
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65.

below.

Plaintiff and other class members are therefore entitled to the relief requested

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE Plaintiff prays for judgment and relief as follows:

1.

10.

11.

I

An order certifying that this action may be maintained as a class and/or collective
action;
Court approval and/or assistance with issuing notice to potential class members

alerting them to this action;

Compensatory and statutory damages, penalties and restitution, as appropriate and

available under each cause of action, in an amount to be proven at trial based on,
inter alia, the unpaid balance of overtime compensation, wages, penalties and
expenses owed by Defendants;

Liquidated damages, as required and available under each cause of action;
Penalties pursuant to California Labor Code Sections 226 and 226.7, et al.;
An order enjoining Defendants from pursuing the policies, acts, and practices
complained of herein;

Reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to, inter alia, the FLSA; California Labor
Code Section 1194; and Business & Professions Code Section 17200;

Costs of suit;

Reimbursement of expenses;

Pre- and post-judgment interest;

Such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.
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JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff hereby demands a jury trial.

Dated: May 20, 2009

By:

NELSON LAW GROUP

/S/ Robert S. Nelson

15
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